
FINAL 

1 
PB-8/30/2010-Meeting Minutes – Final 

  
 

   SALISBURY PLANNING BOARD 
 
 

 

      Planning Board – Public Meeting 
August 30, 2010 Meeting Minutes 

 

Joe Schmidl, Chairman                              - Present     Raymond Deary – Alternate                 - Present    
Doug Greiner – Vice Chairman/Secretary – Present      Stacia Eastman – Alternate                   - Present  
Al Romano - Member                                - Present       Ella Thomas – Alternate                       - Absent    
Anne Ross-Raymond – Member                - Present      Vacant – Alternate                                 - N/A      
Karen Sheldon – Selectman Ex-Officio     - Present     April Rollins, Planning Assistant           - Present      
    
Visitors that signed the Sign-In Sheet: Shirley Johnson, Dick Fisher, Tim Burnier, Richard Magie, Robert 
Pagano, Gayle Landry, Roy Robertson, Cindy Romano, Chuck Rose, Justin Wells, Chief Frank Jones & Ken 
Ross-Raymond.  

*************************************************************************************** 
 
Joseph Schmidl opened the meeting at 7:00 p.m.  
 
  
NEW BUSINESS 
  
Review and approve the meeting minutes of August 16, 2010 – The Board reviewed the August 16, 2010 
draft meeting minutes. Anne Ross-Raymond made a motion to approve the meeting minutes of August 16, 
2010 without changes. Vice Chair Greiner seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
Conceptual meeting with Dick Fisher Re: Hunting Preserve on the Rose property – Chair Schmidl 
clarified to those in attendance that the meeting is a public meeting not a Public Hearing, which allows the 
applicant the opportunity to present their conceptual ideas and as the Planning Board questions. Chair 
Schmidl noted that when the process progresses then there will be an opportunity for the public to weigh in. 
Chair Schmidl stated the meeting would be conducted in a civil manner and anyone who may not be, will be 
asked to excuse themselves from the tonight’s meeting.  
 
Dick Fisher and Tim Burnier were present. Mr. Burnier informed the Board that they are proposing to create 
wildlife preservation on the Rose’s 400 acres of contiguous land and a sporting Club. Mr. Burnier noted they 
have been in contact with the Natural Resources Conservation Services and the UNH Cooperative Extension. 
The PB reviewed a map of the proposed area on Loverin Hill Road. The facility would be located on TML # 
229.09; the driveway would be 1,800 feet on the southerly half of the road and another 1,800 feet to the 
clubhouse/parking area and the septic & well would be donated by members. Mr. Fisher provided the PB 
with pictures of existing clubhouses in different states. Mr. Fisher noted he would like to see a 1½-story club 
with a kitchen, bathroom and a staff. Mr. Fisher explained there would be a carting path for golf carts to 
access the lower fields that would be 12 ft. wide in to forest openings.  Anne Ross-Raymond asked if they 
would be clearing some of the land and Mr. Fisher replied only some of the lower brush/trees. Mr. Burnier 
noted the club would be strictly bird hunting, to increase the wildlife habitat and would help deer hunters in 
the area. Mr. Burnier stated there would not be any fences only signs posted. Anne Ross-Raymond asked 
when bird season is and Mr. Fisher replied he hopes to hold bird season year round. Anne Ross-Raymond 
asked if the Heath Highway would still be able to be utilized and Mr. Fisher replied they are going to connect 
the Heath Highway to Loverin Hill Road. Mr. Fisher noted they are going to work with snowmobile clubs 
and the birds would be “breed”.    

 



Planning Board – Public Meeting Minutes –August 30, 2010 

PB-8/30/2010-Meeting Minutes -Final 2 

 
 
Mr. Burnier stated they would like to make a Site Plan Review Application and asked for any issues/concerns 
from the PB. Ray Deary asked how wide the driveway would be and Mr. Fisher replied a 16 ft. lane on the 
southern half of the Right-of-Way (66 ft.). Mr. Fisher stated the use would be agricultural and the Code 
Enforcement Officer said it would be a permitted use. Anne Ross-Raymond replied the Building Inspector 
does not have the authority to tell the Applicant that it’s okay. Vice Chair Greiner recommended they check 
with the Zoning Board because he has done some research, which has led to open discussions, some Towns 
allow hunting preserves and some request conditional use permits because it is almost like a restaurant. Mr. 
Burnier replied he would check in to the issue. Ray Deary suggested checking with the Fire Department 
regarding the road’s width requirements. Karen Sheldon asked if they knew about the pending foreclosure on 
the Griffin/Bardsley’s property (9/14/10). Al Romano asked if the driveway would be from the centerline to 
the travel way or the centerline to the ROW and Mr. Fisher replied to the travel way. Chair Schmidl noted the 
property does not have any road frontage and would need to be addressed with the ZBA. Mr. Burnier stated 
as the plans are being developed they will discuss some of these issues with the BOS. Anne Ross-Raymond 
noted the lot is currently non-conforming, so a variance may be needed. Chair Schmidl asked if the driveway 
would be an easement or property transfer and Mr. Fisher replied an easement.  
 
Anne Ross-Raymond asked if there would still be public access. Mr. Burnier replied there would still be 
public access with a posted (“no kill zone”) 300-foot buffer around the property lines. Ray Deary asked if 
membership rates have been set and Mr. Fisher replied not yet but people would be member or pay a daily 
rate. Karen Sheldon asked about wetlands and Mr. Fisher replied they are looking to create more wetlands. 
Chair Schmidl asked if they would be damming or diverting water to create more wetlands and Mr. Fisher 
replied he was unsure. Chair Schmidl stated the proposal would need to include the future intentions of the 
hunting preserve as part of the over all planning process.  
 
The PB, Mr. Fisher and Mr. Burnier briefly discussed the Hunting Preserve’s kitchen use (rentals or 
exclusive?), site design, payback/market analysis, number of employees, buffer enforcement, rules & 
regulations, hours of operation and the serving of alcohol. Mr. Burnier stated he would try to get a handle on 
these items going forward. Chair Schmidl noted the PB would need to know about a lot of the items raised 
because the judgment made for this would be in perpetuity. Vice Chair Greiner noted the information would 
also be need for the Public Hearing, people will want to know.  
 
Chair Schmidl asked about lead deposits. Mr. Fisher introduced Robert Pagano, who has numerous “hazmat” 
certifications. Mr. Pagano informed the PB he has reviewed environmental impact statements and the lead 
capsulizes itself when discharged and cannot travel. Anne Ross-Raymond asked what would happen with 
acid soils or rain and Mr. Pagano replied the lead stays sealed unless handled by a person. A brief discussion 
took place regarding the difference between lead vs. steel. Chair Schmidl noted he would like to see 
something regarding lead from an independent third party. Ray Deary asked if there would a Gun Shop and 
Mr. Fisher replied the Barn Store would be their local vendor.   
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Capital Improvements Program – The final vote was tabled until 9/20/10, in order for the Selectman to 
review & discuss at their next meeting.  
 
Site Plan Review – Public Hearing continuance – Scheduled for Monday, September 20, 2010.  
 
CORRESPONDENCE  
 
Budget 2010 – The Planning Board will request level funding this year. They are scheduled to meet with the 
BOS on 10/20 @ 6:50 p.m. and the Budget Committee on 11/8 @ 7:20 p.m.  
 



Planning Board – Public Meeting Minutes –August 30, 2010 

PB-8/30/2010-Meeting Minutes -Final 3 

 
NH Housing – The PB received a copy of the “Meeting the Workforce Housing Challenge”. A guidebook for 
NH Municipalities.             
  
ADJOURNMENT –The Planning Board adjourned at 9:05 p.m.  
 
NEXT MEETING - The Planning Board will meet at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, September 20, 2010 at the 
Academy Hall.  
 
Minutes prepared by April Rollins, Planning/Zoning Assistant 


